
Social Opportunities Initiative  
 

RFP Questions & Answers 
 

Question: Will the successful grantee be required to comply with Minority and 
Women's Business Enterprise (MWBE) provisions for any procurement that will 
be obtained as part of this grant; i.e. if the successful grantee were to contract for 
IT support related to this project? (Posted September 5, 2018) 

Answer: Answer: We don't require grantees to be compliant with the MWBE provisions, 
although we do encourage the use of such providers when feasible. 

Question: What are the appropriate uses of and contract percentages for 
consultants and sub-contractors? (Posted September 5, 2018) 
 
Answer: The DDPC has an expectation that the lead applicant’s organization will 
conduct the majority of the work involved in planning, administering and implementing 
the grant.  
 
Consultants and sub-contractors are considered appropriate when they can provide 
specific programmatic expertise not otherwise available, when they can provide a 
service not traditionally conducted by the grantee (i.e. printing, media services, etc.), or 
when the use of such contractors and consultants is cost-effective or will lead to 
maximization of desired contract outcomes.  
 
The lead applicant has the responsibility to select and compensate a consultant or sub-
contractor, and to monitor the delivery of results and products that will assist in 
achieving the overall performance objectives for the project. 

 
 

Question: Under the “Approach” section of the RFP, it states: “In an effort to 
improve identified barriers and gaps, DDPC will select one grantee to: 1. Develop, 
administer, and evaluate a mini-grant program focused on high-poverty, rural 
counties in year 1, and expanding to include high-poverty urban counties in years 
2-3, of the bi-annual (two rounds, annually) mini-grants series to address the 
social isolation needs of people with ID/DD, and other disabilities across the life 
span. Our organization is based in all 5 boroughs of New York City, and we do not 
have a rural presence. Does this make us ineligible? (Posted on September 7, 
2018) 

Answer: Per the grant requirements, the program does need to focus on rural 
communities in Year 1, and can be expanded to urban communities in Years 2 and 



3.  This project is coming out of our work in un- and underserved communities, and 
thus, the areas of emphasis are a requirement for the funding. 
 
 
Question: Is it possible for us to apply for the social opportunities initiative in 
conjunction with another organization’s chapter? We are part of a network of 
state chapters, located all throughout the state. Some of the sister chapters are 
located in more rural areas, and if we were able to work together, we’d meet the 
criteria of covering both rural and urban areas. (Posted on September 7, 2018) 
 
Answer: Collaborations are completely acceptable. However, one applicant has to be 
the ‘primary’, and then you can subcontract with other entities. 

 

 

Question: Are there any exclusions in regards to what the mini-grants are allowed 
to fund? For example, can funds be used for capital costs, equipment or leases 
(e.g. vans, computers, etc.)? As another example, can mini-grant funds be used 
for indirect costs and is there an upper limit for indirect costs? Are there any 
budget limitations (i.e. maximum amount of money) in regards to any potential 
line items (e.g. capital costs, staffing funds, indirect costs, etc.) for the mini-
grants? For example, could a mini-grant applicant apply for the purchase of a van 
for transportation purposes?   

What is the ideal number (or ideal range) of mini-grant applications that should be 
funded per year? Is there a minimum or maximum amount of applicants that 
should be funded?  Is there a minimum or maximum amount of mini-grant funds 
that can go to a particular applicant? Are mini-grant applicants eligible to receive 
funds more than one time per year? Are mini-grant applicants eligible to receive 
funds more than one time over the life cycle of this DDPC grant?   

Are we required to request matching funds (cash or in-kind) from mini-grant 
applicants? And, what kind of organizations/entities/people are eligible for mini-
grants? For example, non-profit, for-profit, individuals, community organizations, 
etc? (Posted on September 21, 2018) 

Answer: The budget limitations for any sub-grantee or subcontractor on any DDPC 
grant, which would include the mini-grants for the Social Opportunities initiative, are 
beholden to the funding limitations of DDPC funding more generally. Our funding cannot 
be used to purchase capital projects/supplies/improvements, etc. 



As far as our grant funds are concerned, grantees are only allowed to charge up to 10% 
to indirect expenses.  It is the expectation for the grant recipient of this initiative to 
maximize funding that reaches community based organizations, for direct program 
expenses. Therefore, the grantee would be responsible for match funding, and we 
would not expect to see the grantee require mini-grantee recipient organizations to 
contribute match. Please read the RFP carefully for further details. 

As we state in the application, AT LEAST 100,000 dollars of the yearly 250,000 
allocation MUST go to mini-grant recipients. How, exactly, the grantee allocates those 
funds should be identified in the application. It is at the discretion of the grantee whether 
or not mini-grant recipients can receive repeat funding.  Mini-grant recipients should 
align with ‘eligible applicants’ for any DDPC funding opportunities. Per the RFP, the 
grantee must run at least two series of mini-grant application processes annually.  
Please note, as stated in the RFP, the intent of the initiative is to maximize program 
funds for social opportunities by community based organizations. 
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